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UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

DALLAS, TEXAS 73221 

February 7, 1966 

1=1,1AIT I 

r. Carl 7,1. 3elcher, Chief 
General Crimes Section 
Criminal Division 
Denartment of justice 
Washirnton, D.C. 	20530 

,, 7r77. Joseah J. Cella 

Re: One 6.5 =m. :lannlicher Carcano 1,1ilitary Rifle, 
Model 91-38, Serial :o. 02766 With Appurtenances, 
and One .36 Special S z, I Victory Model Revolver, 
Serial Ho. V510210, :Tith .1mPurtenances 
e-st. Ref.: 7.TV:O;TB:nem 12-11 

Dear 'Ir. Belcher: 

I enclose one copy each of the Government's sunplementel and renly 
brief and Government's additional resuested conclusions of law, 
which I have today filed with the District Clerk in accordance with 
the Court's pre-trial order in the captioned case. I also enclose 
one copy of Claimant John King's su7nlemental and renly brief which 
has just been delivered to ray office. 

Very truly yours, 

Melvin M. Diggs 
United States Attorney 

Enclosures 

.,----:- 
3. H. T1nins, Jr., Assistant 
united States f-- ,,,./.7:-..e , 	,-. 	i 	1 

I
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ZUi TEE DISTRICT CCURT OF TEE UNITED STA=S 

FOR TEE NORTURN DISTRICT OF TEAS 

DALLAS DIVISIOU 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 	 ) 
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) 

ONE 6.5 mm. MANNLICHEE■CARCANO 	 ) 
MILITARY RIFLE, MDDEL 91-38, 	 ) 
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AND ONE .33 SPECIAL SCR VICTORY MCDEL 	) 
REVOLVER, SERIAL NO. V510210, MTH 	) 
APPURTENANCES, 	 ) 

) 
Respondents. 	 ) 

CIV/L NO. 3-1171 

    

covERmENT's SUPPLEMENTAL AND RET7TY ERTry 

This brief is supplemental to that filed ct the tire of the pretrial 

conference on January 27, 1966, to cover matters raised during the pretrial 

conference and metters not raised by the pleedings but introduced by 

claimant's brief. It is also in reply to some matters raised by claimant's 

brief but covered only in a general way in the government's pretrial brief 

Matters covered herein are: 

I. Reply to Argument of Claimant. 

II. Effect, if any of Public Law 89-318 on Question of Forfeiture. 

III. Covetitutionality of Forfeiture Proceedings Under 15 U.S.C. 9C5(b) 
as Applied to This Case. 

IV. Effect on These Proceedings of Supreraa Court's Holding That For-
feiture Proceedings Are Quasi-Criminal. 

1. Reply to Argument of Claimant. 

Claimant on pages 2 and 3 of his brief filed on pretrial lists three 

defects (or difficulties) in the sovernment's assertion that the giving of a 

fictitious name by Lee Harvny Oscrald and the use of this fictitious name by 

the firearme dealers resulted in a failure to keep to records required of 

licensed firearms dealers ned therefore resulted in violations of provisions 

of the Pedoral Firearms Act and of regulations promulgated thereunder. In 

numbers one and two, the claimant completely overlooks the provisions or 

13 U.S.C. 2 concerning inducing or procurip,,  the cammiecion of an offense 



and concerning causing an act to be done. Ve have covered this matter in 

detail on pages 9 through 12 of our pretrial brief. Also, in item number-  2 

claimant infers that although the government might by lau or regulation 

require the furnishing of informatioa such as the name of the purchaser of 

firearms, it is pouerleos to object if the information is felon. This is 

covered on pages 10 and 16 of our pretrial brief wherein ec cite Heasley v.  

United States, 171 F. 2c1 73 (9th Cir. 1943), cert. den. 336 U.S. 904, that 

the government does not have to tolerate the furnishing of false inforection. 

This case involved the shoeing of fictitious names as the purchasers of liquors. 

In item three the cleimect, in effect, asserts that the firearm, thick is the 

aub3ect of the false entry in the required records, is not Involved in the 

violation of the Federal Firearms Act or regulations but that it is the 

record which is so involved. The government's p osItic^ on this is set out 

on pages 12 and 13 of our pretrial brief therein en cite n: roes cases there 

property has been forfeited because of false entries in required records 

relating to liquors, in acme of these cases liquors :ere forfeited and in 

others, autor_bilea rare forfeited. 

It is the claimant'a position that the firearms uere cot involved in the 

violation here the violation wan the false entry is the record of disposition 

of the firearm. In addition to the cited eaces declaring forfeiture of liquors 

involved in record keeping violations concerning such liquors, there are 

numerous cases holding that money is forfeited as involved in the law viola-

tion of engaging in the business of accepting uagers and failing to pay the 

special tax required by 26 U.S.C. 4411, United States v, Currency in the  

.?....mentef2271,4Q, 157 F. Supp. 300 (N.D. U.Y. 1937); united States v.  

s1.ao3.4o, 153 F. Supp. 916 (S.D. 111. 1953); 14nited States v. $4.29$.80, 

179 F.  Supp. 251 (D. :Id. 1959)e United States 7, Leveeon, 262 F. 2d 659 

(3th Cir. 1959);  •United States v. Frank, 265 P. 2d 529 (5th Cir. 1959). 

In Marderosieu v > United Stites 237 P. 2d 759 (let Cir. 1064), the Court 

stated i:hat there is no merit to the pocitioa that boolenaking records, bet 

slips, rue-down slips, pencils, and az adding eachine :acre not seinehle as 

the meses of committing the offense of `engaging in wagering without payment 

of the eecciel eae. 7:1 	States v. twee, 234 U.S. 167, 172, 76 L. Ed. 

224 (1531), trade fieturee of a soft drink parlor rare forfeited as ieplemeata 



and connected inotruments in the operation of a saloon oolling unt=paid 

distilled spirits. The Court in sustaining the forfeiture said, 

"We are not called upon to give a strained 
interpretation in order to avoid a forfeiture. 
Statutes to prevent fraud on the revenue are 
construed less narrowly, even though a forfeiture, 
results, * *." 

Claimant cites United States v. Lane  Ifottc.r  Connaav, 344 U.S. 630, 97 L. 

Ed. 622 (1953), is nhich forfeiture nes denied there,  the automobile uas used 

only in commuting to an illicit distillery, The Court, in effect, held that 

this limited use of commuting did not maim the vehicle "involved in the 

violation." Automobiles have been held "involved in the violation" in many 

instances there such did net transport contraband but %ere used as an "active 

aid" in a violation. See UnitedSt-ter v. 1962 Pord, 234 r. Supp. 798 (W.D. 

Vas 1964); United Statcs v. GJLA.C. 239 F.2d 102 (5th Cir. 1956); United 

States v. 1960 Fords  203 Q. Supp. 387 (N.D. Ala. 1961); all of which distinguish 

the Lana Mntor Company cane. 

On page 7 of his brief claimant quotes from greuter v. United States, 

201 7.2d 33 (10th Cir. 1952), at page 35, saying that a person may adopt an  

mud name. Clainant ends his quotation too soon and omits the most important 

language of the Court at that part. The omitted part is, 

"But he must not use it /The fictitious name 
to defraud others through a mistake of identity." 

This cape is not actually in point since G. W. Zreuter used the fictitious 

name of V. L. Davis to endorse and negotiate a counterfeit check. The offense 

would have been present had the defendant used his ova name. 

There is cited in the Mreuter case, su-rra, the case of 'aroma For Ccupany  

"kr  .110ver 7 inbi 1 it, 	Ur nCO COrn rat: :7— Ltd= 	 159 F. 2d 536 (7th Cir. 

1947), in which a nale employee of ICropp and his wife set up under an assumed 

name, cent falca invoices for goods to Tropp  3or which receipts and --yment 

wers :Locoed by the husband. The plaintiff was defrauded of $12,477.35 by this 

scheme. The insurance covered losses by checks payable to a fictitious payee. 

The Court held that tl:e name ancumed by the husband and wife in this case vas 

In ?art D of the claimant's pretrial brief, he attempt to sot up as a 

defence to forfeiture that the clai,--,r1P, Jcha . Iting, wan an innocent person 



and ti:ca cites czses ';i1-7.2 relief apl7arently hzd c ci4en innocent persons. 

The govermment annuero this by saying (a) KinG %new, yhen be purchased his 

claimed interest in the guns, that he was purchasing a right to a lawsuit, 

and (b) the cases cited do not hold that the innocence of a claimant is n 

factor in determining the question of forfeiture. 

The claimont, John J. Nina, knew ninon he purchased his claimed interest 

in the respondent guns that the guns were sub;ect to adverse claims. The 

Bills of Salo, E%hibits 16 and 17 of the Stipulation of Facts, show the 

possibility that John J. ',Zing night not get possession of the guns. These 

Bills of Sale use the language 

"If anti then buyer obtains possession of 
the above described personal property, 
free of all adverse cloimi thereto * *." 

These Bills of Sale also provide for Mt. Nines being uoohle to obtain 

possession of such guns. 

The innocence of a clalionnt to property has never been a factor in 

determining the question of forfeiture. It is the guilt or innocence of the 

"thing" which is determinative in an "in rem" action. To consider the innocence 

of the claimant would be to destroy the "ia rem" nature of the proceedings for 

forfeiture. in CzoldornitL, 	 States, 254 U.S. 505, 

65 InEd. 37G (1921) at page 511, it is said: 

"In other words, it is the ruling of that 
case /Dobbins Distillery v. United States, 
96 U.S. 395/ that the thing is primarily 
considered the offender." 

and on page 513, 

"It is the illegal use that is the material 
consideration,-.it is that Oh:Leh norks the 
forfeiture, the guilt or innocence of its 
owner being accidental." 

In 2 19nitodStstosv.Ono4117ord2-tonT 	95 r. Supp. 214 (;,.D. 

1951), cited by claimant on page. 11 of his pretrial brief, relief was not 

granted because of innocence of the claimant, but because the goverment 

failed to prcve "involvenent" of the vehicle. The Goverment attempted to 

prove that the seined nutomobile vas used in convoying loads of liquor. The 

Courtconcluded that the evidence vas not convinoin3. The Court's discussion 

of the Innocence or lack of knewledge of tho clamant was in consideration 

of 7,C=1-3SifM cf ror!:eitu7o. 

The statamonto on page 12 of the claimant's `retrial brief cencorninG 

United Mates v Oan 1935 17Cdo1 7ord_ 307 U.S. 219, 33 L.Ed. 1249 (1939)0 



also were in consideration of Lemission of Forfeit,-  . There was no question 

  

about forfeiture but after forfeiture the Commercial Credit Coptic ay sought 

relief in asking a forgiveness of the (:)rfeituro as to them and their interest 

as lienholder. The finance company had dealt -aith a "straw purchaser" who 

bad a good reputation but who fronted for a ii;uor violator. The Court in 

considering -obether or not to grant remission under what is now 18 U.S.C. 3617 

stated that the finance company could not have the burden of chocking on a 

person 1'f:he true purchoser7 concerning whose s;:istence they :mew nothing. 

In 	 .;rte 1 1 1Zrrz 	, 51 P. Sup p. 6C3 

(<.D. Tenn. 1943), cited on race 15 of claimont's pretrial brie!, the tractor 

had 	stolen by the persons using such ia the violation. It was held that 

the cloinnnt Etrlance company uculd be denied du

ff

er process cf law if their 

interests 1Jere forfeited since they had no dea 4 gs w4th the thief who used 

the tractor in the violation. 

The due process of law prohibition has =ever bean a:ltended to an innocent 

spouse those husband used family property is a violation resulting in forfeiture 

of such property. in paited States 7. One Perr7uson Tam Tr cto , 125 P. Supp. 

530 (C.D. Va. 1954), the wife owned a farm and equipment and operated such 

uith her husband, The husband used the tractor La a liquor law violation 

resulting in its seizure. The Court held that the wife, in giving her husband 

uncontrolled use of the tractor, assumed the risk of its use in a law violation. 

A similar holding was made in Jones v. United Stnteo, 330 F. 2d CO9 (10th Cir. 

1964). 

12 the firearms involved in the record violations were purchased with 

the separate funds of Lee Zarvey Oswald, his wife would aot have any interest 

therein and his estate would not be conaidercd since the forfeiture occurred 

prior to his death. 74: the firearms were p=chcaed wLtil community funds, the 

wife would be bound by the action cf the husband since tae husband would have 

control of such property. Article 4(519 V.A.T.S.; 	Lfaritral Rights in 

TaNas, Pourth Edit :Lou, Section 354, nn, 	r 

The discussic.n of the ?urpcses of tke .1:orifEliterG provisions of the Federal 

Firearms Act as given by claimant on page 12 of his ?retrial brief is much 

more narrow than es shown in the full report on the enactment of 15 U.S.C. 905(b). 

The report does contain the auctation given by %;Isimznt but also states: 



- "The purpose of the bill is to give ezerreee 
authority to law enforcement officials for the 
seizure, forfeiture, aad disposition of firearms 
and ammunition involved in violetions of the 
Federal Firearms Act." 

The letter from the Acting Secretary of the Treasury, in ehich the languege 

used by cia:eent appear c, uses the expression quoted above and then, in the 

cecond paragraph of such letter, compares other laus enforced by the Treasury 

in ehieh firearme are ceized and concerning vhich forfeiture provisions are 

node. The letter shoue that the enactment of the bill will provide procedures 

under the federal Fireares Act similar to those applicable to firearms seized 

under other lees. The eeplanetion of the bill, glen considered as a whole, 

does not support the =rem; construction urged by claimant. (U. S. Code 

Congressional Service, 1950-2, page 1907.) 

II. Effect if ane of Public Lae C9-318 on Cuestioa  of Forfeiture. 

Initially, it should be noted that U.P. 9545, vhiah becaue Public 

Lou 89-313, ucs intrcduccd in the !louse on June 29, 1965, and passed on 

Septeteler 7, 1965. The Bill vete reported in the Senate October 4, 1965, 

and passed en October 18, 1965. Administrative proceedings to forfeit the 

mapone in questioa ueee instituted on August 16, 1965> Proceedings to 

judicially forfeit these weapons usee commenced on September 10, 1965, the 

claimant having filed the requisite claim and cost bond. 

There is nothing in the committee reports or the debates shoving 

that the Congress ees specifically informed of the pending forfeiture proceed- 

tags at the time of the enectment of P.L. 89-318. Convereely, there is no 

indication that the Coneetea as not so inforeed. It is tree that while 

P.L. 39-313 does not refer to the aesassinatim veapeas or to any other 

specific item, the discussions in the House and Senate centered =July around 

such we:43one. It is apparent, houever, that this came about because the 

claiellet in the present forfeiture proceeding we esid to have made an arrange- 

neat with 	Oeeeld to puede:a° the rifle and pistol in question free 

OseeId. Cope. Rec., Uouee, Sept. 7, 1965, pp. 22153-22160. In the Senate 

coesideeetion of the eeeeure, the claimaat's statement before the Senate Judi-

ciary Ccmmettee vex oedeeed eo be printed in the Ilecord. Celle. Rec., Senate, 

Oct. 3, 1965, p. 26302. Thehouse quite eroperly diecusecd the matter of 



the claimant in the even: the `'...r 
'^d Stctas acquired title 

to the ncapons under the legislation. If, hmover, the pending forfeiture 

proceedings terminate favorably to the United States, that consideration 

.fit be moot. In this connection, it is of more than passing interest Co 

note that the cla!--,Int's stateuent before the Senate Judiciary Committee 

conclu T'4  s with thin language: 

"It (U.R. 9545) represents a totally 
unjustified unste of the ta::payers 
=coy. It should not be enacted." 

iJ .ore fully discussed hereafter, the forfeiture proceedings, 

if the 3cve==zint prevails, ulll result in the perfection cf the government
's 

to these -,:ea peas uithout the e:zpondituro Of
.  any of the =payers' laoney. 

t=„12  
There ia no inconsistency batvean 	

afforded the United 

States under 2ublic Lau G9-32.8, approved I:el:eviler 2, 1955, and those sought 

by the forfeiture proceedings in:lafar as the ueepons 
	VOStiOn are con- 

corned. Mat enactment itsol:: does net purport to vast title to any "items 

of evidence" uhich %;are sensiderld by the ?resident's Commission on the 

Ac3fzen e ?resiCent 1:ensady. On the contrary, the Attorney General 

is authorized to deterLine, from time to time, L:nich particular its should 

'he acquired and preserved 'cr, 
 the Uni,ed States. The statute further provides 

that 'charever the Ltts-zuay General deterr
,ireo that my pe-z:ticular itea or 

iteuz should be so sccuiL-
ed cad preserved, all right, title, and iaterest in 

and to such item or items she'll be vested iu the United States upon the publi- 

cation of that determination ia the rederal Register. 

It is at once apparent that Congress did not have any particular 

ita=5. 
 in rzilze I:'en it passed this legislation.1/ 2::actly 3,154 numbered 

Comm;ssio:. o...1.14 b4
ts a;l:L nu:.:2rcus ether euhibits tele considered by the 

CO: =11-0 

^4 	
:I n .‘ or any part of uhich could conceivably fall 

,.;ithin the ambit of 

7,,blu LC77 f.;9-310. That beg 
	

situation Congress recognized the uecessity 

for pernitrisg the Attorne Coneral to c!otermine vi.;.ich item or items should ba 

...j 17:7 .c::te-: T.L.;',:scl .7_71::-.7i);:7-
: :, .:64, 'file 33:lercl WC,Inao.1 ..;.f ,Lte 2::esienti  

==.L3a ,
:a the 2!.r.:37.cr,.zat71a t-aqtlesteL: t:.: J%t:.=ney CenrIrai to n,l

," 	J-he 

____!-, 	'a ,:r.°:.in,-, :=1--'n ±at ":1 swcs
--:!--tinl z:ule-,-  c n'ay.lizzal 11:012,J p.i 

--,:-- 	01.:ALlid 17e1:2:,n f..n ',Ito :7;36CO5iOr. 
if t!le r.,:overnLlezt 	21e Attorney -,A_-___ 

Zonere' latts7: cx:  it.'.. 17 I'.)C1f, 
 to tILs C-)ea.;_lr, 	c : aapresentaties

,  

L:::i2Z CriLICZZLI::: :-.3f the lef!::cint!on, 125
;:C- -.:.aren,..:e to 'numerous items of 

s.h!-
sical evidence' insludinG the .4:47-C:15 7:-.V. "Z:.401::::Cr- cr.,i '-

amly cahar e:zhibitz," 

,:l.a. ;:1..:, 0)t11 Cc-sc.- lot Ecs,T.- 

n: 

a 

ALS,255iLIntiOU Of 23-CSidCat 



acquired. Actually, that statute ia no my vests any title to any item in 

the United States. Only after the Attorney General makes hip deterrninr:tion 

GS to the acquisition of any particular item and upon publication of that 

determination in the Federal Register does title to the item vest in the 

United States. Should the United States acquire it 	to any of the {tens 

Q.F. evidence by gift ar, for enample, if the forfeiture pvoceedings tarrirvIte 

favorably to the United States, the statute still Lc operative vith recpeot 

to the remaining items. 

Section 3 of Public Lev 09-310 provides that the United States Court 

of Claims or the United States District Court for the judicial district therein 

the claiasnt resides shall have jurisdictica to hear and dotervine any claim 

for just compensation for any item or interest therein acquired by the United 

States nursuant to the statute. In nevise, homever, can it 	paid that Congress 

made provision for the payment of compensation for any item acquired in any 

other manner, In short, Fublic Lau 39-313 does act provide the eaclusive 

remedy by vhich the United States could obtain 	to she veapcns in question 

or any other items of physical evidence involved. :ndead, title to these 

ueopone had already vested in the United States than 	i eCirlat 	uss 

enacted. 

Forfeiture of property seised occurs at the tine of the illeaci use 

bringing about its forfeiture. United Stags 7. Stmll, 133 U.S. I (1C90). 

The forfeiture of these quo firearms, therefore, occurred at the time they 

became involved in the record heaping violations of the Federal Firearms Act. 3/ 

Ue can hardly ascribe to the Congress an intention to disburse public funds to 

acquire property 	Uaited States already owns. 

There are here alternative remedies available to the United States. 

Clearly, 2ublis Low 39-310 does not provide the e;:clusive remedy. To conclude 

that such is the cope iD to ignore the plain meaning of* the legisletica ns 

as its legiolstive histor7, And it cannot be said !

~

s

7. 

by encetinc, this lezis- 

lotion Congress repos:ad 	implication the timo-i;onad statutes providing 

31 Dett:e:::n Mach 	'SGT and narch 20, 12:33 z-:0 to the rifle; during tIle 
period from ,:ianuary 27, 19L3 Co or 20. 1963 	to the revolver (see 
paragraph I= of the Libel of Iafermation) 



for forfeiture in appropriate cases. The cardinal rule is that repeals by 

implication are not favored. Posed:2s v. Ustionsl Cif Daaj, 296 U.S. 497 

(1936). At page 503, the Court said: 

"There are two wee settled categories of repcalc 
by implicatiou--(1) where provisions ia the two 
acts are ia irreconcilable cenflict, tha later act 
to the enteat of the conflict canstioutes au implied 
repeal of the earlier ire; and ,,2) if the later act 
covers the whole cubject of the earlier one and is 
clearly intended sa a seostituto, it will operate 
similarly as a repeal of the o=lier act, But, in 
either cane, the intention of the legislation to 
repeal musl' be clear rnd mr4145est; * * *." 

Neither conditioa 	 There is no "irreconcilable conflict." 

2tiblio Lau S9-310 is a limited statute with specific reference to the et:ercise 

of the pone r of eminent domain in a prescribed =neer and ha nothing to do 

with a broad enactment providing for the forfe; lire of property becaeue of 

illegal use. Indeed, there is no conflict, irrecencilablo or otherwise. 

The two can be harmonized and both oaa stand, 	force, application, =ora- 

tion. and effect. L the Un"-ed Stal-es is successful in the libel proceeding, 

no right, title or interest ia the weapens ccu/o paso co the United States 

under Public Lay 39-313. And, of course, the invention of +.1..o. legislature to 

repeal l'aust be clear and manifeot." Zed Reel: v, Peary, 106 U.S. 596, 001, 602, 

27 T. G. 251 (1003); atggISI:oLyo lloyi.totea, 346 U.S. 273, 294, 97 L.Ed. 

1607 (1953). flare the statute and its legislative hiztory are completely 

silent in thia respect. Too, Public Lau C9-313 covers none of the subject 

of the forfeiture statute and obviously wan not intended as a substitute. 

The Court of Appeala for the Fifth Circuit gave effect to a general 

forfeiture etctute in United States 7. Canc./ 133 7. 3d 273 (5th Cir. 1950), 

az ezainst a claim that there wce saccific forfeiture statute applicable to 

the conduct cozplained of. There was a criziaal prosecution under 26 U. .C, 

3253 (1939 Code); hot:ever, a cozpaeion fozfoiture action wee brought under 

26 U.S.C. 3116 and 3321 (1939 Cede) thicb are 23U.S.C.7302 and 7301, 

respectively, of the 1954 reviaion of the Code. Section 321:2 Drovided for 

-ono of tLe property in _ '11-1 of that ro,'4-4-o. 

hoveve,-, forfeiture of an auto of 	*,:.ca not 	prz.:vidod. Forfeiture action 

against 2Z automobile 'ma brought untler the general cecticno (3116 and 3321). 

The Court otated that Cong7:acs ie enacting Seatio!.1 3116, intended to aid lau 

.. 9 



enforcement, and the limited constructipa arced by the claimant vould tend 

to nullity the effectivenena of the statute as an enforcinc measure. The 

Court bold that the ceneral section was availablo notvithatandinc the ortistence 

of the more specific provision. 

0* urce that, since there was =a anpress repeal ia Public Lau 09..312, 

as plied repeals are act favored, and on the forfeiture o the respondent 

fireert occurred prior to the onsotnent of Public Law 39.316, the Court 

rule that the onactt:eut of this statute had no effect on this forfeiture 

proceeding. 

III. Constitutimolity o2 Porfeituze 2r=ledia Under 15 U.S.C. 905(b) 
es Anal; ed to This Case. 

On paces 23 through 26 of his pretrial brief, claJe-nit attempts to 

establish that the forfeiture sought in this cnuso uould be contrary to pro-

visions of the ncta Amendzest to tho Constitution of the United States as 

(1) depriving him of prope::ty wl.theut due process of to pad as (2) taaing 

private property for public uee without jtaat c=pensaticae 	 recoG- 

nines that the reported cases are against hiscontention but he relegates 

those londmarh eases to 	 rn." Claimant also attachs the tiLe 

honored distinction betmen actions "La rem" and actions "in person= " 

n gtothy san, v.tr.../jItotistrIteo, 254 U.S. 505, 511, 

GS L.Ed. 37G (1921), cited by the cln+t-nut as bosilg its action in upholding 

a forfeiture as constitutional on the "in rem fiction," the Court stated: 

"But %jhether the reason * * * be artificial 
or zeal, it is too firmly fined in the punitive 
and remedial jurisprudence of the country to be 
now dic7lacnd." 

In United Ctstes v. One 1962  1`or'2 Thu clerbird, 232 Y. Stipp. 1019 

(LD. III. l964), an attach similar to this vos undo on i forfeiture soucht 

under 49 U.S.C. 702. The Court considered the "is ren fiction" of 

C=zn-72  3Unr3, an snid (p3, 1022): 

"* * * Vn 7)17717'n'',  hcceve.;:, to zonslder the 
statutozy 42.T.ac:2.7.1cmto on c'_7r-n,ir; ,acre suit- 
able than "..:hoce 	stza frm. the fletion 
of an 	-zel..! 

then stated: 



ilvcir-Jrulora conciaoso  in the implementation of its 
constitutional powers, provides for penalties sm-h  
as forfeitures, such action is not a taking of 
property in a constitutional sense. It is not an 
instance of eminent don sin, is which property is 
tahonkbecause the use of such property is beneficial 
to the public. Rather, the property interest is in* 
fringed because Congress has deemed it nececoary in 
order to Necerve other incident:, of the ptLlic I;e1- 
faze. As such, it representc a federal =raise of 
a police power to which the constitutions? require-
ment of coopeasstica is ilf*?licable. Sec Lcmilton 
v. Enntucky Distillers Co., 251 U.S. 14G, 156-1.57, 
40 S.Ct. 106, 64 L.Ed. 194 (1919); United States v. 
One 1961 Cadillac hardtop Autcmcbi:e, supra, 2C7 F. 
Supp. at 699.'1  

The Fort Worth Divisica of this Court Iza concerned vith the question 

cf the constitutionality of a forfeittzre 1a'; in F-ffilurn'. .7acason e- X1 9  

55 F. 2d 934 (N.D. Tez. 1932), and concluded, 

tliant Consress has the pcuer to pass such an act 
providing for such a forfeiture as the one here 

-undertchee is ,ell settled." 

The action or the Dallas Division of this Court 7cs sustained in 

seiaten Invectment Coonenv 7, Ualted States, 220 F. 2ft 335 (5th Cir. 1955), 

the Appellate Court saying, uith author?ties Cps. 108): 

"Ye le Ye Firer, it is ;1111 
clepr ivat ion .acricitc47, 
process of /au, or a tnizing 
for public use without fair 

settled that such 
not a deals' of due 
of private property 
c=pecoatioa." 

The Supreme Court has repeatedly held that there is no constitutional 

objection to enforcing a penalty by forfeiture of offending property. Waterloo  

1 2=alisiDist- IlerCor.7n-.Unitad.Ststss, 232 U.S. 577, 75 L.Ed. 550 (1931); 

United St to 	Ore Fc.  Cou e, 272 U.S. 321, 71 L.Ed. 279 (1926); Coldscaith 

211;EP2202.4111; 	5tPr1 

IV. Effect on Theca Proccei,,e,s of the Suoreme Court Boldi That Forfeiture 

In One ?1,7taouth sedan v. ?enar,;lvanin, 	U.S. 	14 L.Ed. 2d 170 

(19(35), the SupreLIe Court had under censidratIon the :IL:esti= of TA:ether or 

not evidence obtained throah on unreasoaaalc senrch and seizure cas pub oat to 

tho coustitutional rule requ!.rieg 2::c7 usion L;h.e-..--c the case under consideration 

t;as tLia;: oz civil l'orfoiture, The Court iLeld that ths,  en.cluDionnry rule is 

applicable because a proceeding ±'-ad the frfeltare of property used in violatiog 

a criranal 	ia quesi-oz-itainal ia character. 



This holdinr; of the Court is not new. On the contrary, the Court 

relied onZaLy..42411101:, 116 U.S. 616, 29 L.Ed. 746 (1836), uhich 

held the forfeiture action to be civil is form but arininal in nature. 

The e%clusionary rule had been applied in the alacase there the Court 

said (116 U.S. 634, 29 L.Ed. 752): 

9* * * saits for penalties and ferfeiturse, 
incurred by the commission of offenses agclast 
the lau, are of this quasi-criminal netaro, 
ve think that they ore within the reason of 
criminal proceedings for all purposes of the 
Fourth Ar-enemeat Of the Constitution, and of 
that portion of the Fifth Amendment dice 
declares that no person shall be compelled in 
any criminal case to he a witness against 
himself e * *." 

The 	ease holdivt,  that forfeiture actions ro quasi-crimioal 

in nature and the effect thereof has not been e::teceed, is the past, beyond 

its effect on search and seizure and en compelling testimony of an incrimi.,  

eating nature. Although Coffer. v. United States 116 U.S. 436, 29 L.Ed. 634 

(1086), held action in a criminal case rec judicata in a companion civil 

forfeiture case, this case (Coffey) has bean avciced, 1io. red and distin-

guished to such an extant that coo 42el1ate Court stated not Lt "ha 

received a distinctly unfavorable press." See United States v Burch, 294 

r.2d 1 (5th Cir. 1961). Courts have preferred the distinction betweee criminal 

prosecutions and civil penalties as shone in Uelverinr, 	 303 U.S. 

391, 32 L.Ed. 917 (1933). 

Two additional factors o::ist concerning which different standards 

are applied iu criminal and in civil proceedings. These are (1) the degree 

of proof required by the government and (2) the proof of criuinal intent, if 

any ouch proof is required. 

The Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit has held in the following, 

auon 	cases, that in a forfeiture action the gaverrzent has the burden 

of proving the material all-g.ations of the libel Ly a preponderance of he 

e.7idence and not beyond a 1:0.-1.:,euable doubt. 

Ander:!cn 7. 7:litCC SZ.:1.::1,1,  135 "2.21 343 (5th Cir. 195C); United 

Ut",tes 	One.Calicr,  7?-,=,7:.!..-2d Tin Cz_nc 	3.2d 1G5 (5th Cir. 1953); 

Star--.er 	United Staten, 1:37 47,2d 992 (5th Cir. 1952); rurt t.  United States, 

233 7.2d 473 (5th Cir. 1960); United Stat,..ta 	74:7:ch, 2 4 r.2a 1 (5th Cir. 1961); 
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?cttenotte v. United Staten, 266 F.24 047 (5th Cir. 1959);  United Staten v. 

  

kma, 265 r..ld 693 (5th Cir. 1959). The Supreme Court hold the same in 

Lilienthal'a Tobacco v, United States, 97 U.S. 237, 24 L.Ed. 901 (1378). 

In paited State,- v. 2265 One-Gallon Parafiacd Tin Cans 2a  ma, 

the Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit stated that the district court 

Lad erroneously rolled or. decisions dealing  with crimiaal prosecutions rather 

than those dealing uith forfoiturec in matters of intent. In this case the 

claimant asserted as a defense to the property that he held such for sale 

go the violatoil and not with intent to use such in a tau violation, The 

Court of Appeals applied civil proceeding rulea and held that the intent of 

the seller to sell the property to a violator for use in the violation would 

support a forfeiture. This wee againat the holding  in a criminal case, 

ElteadypLt_•edSt'atos, 199 17.2d 923 (5th Cir. 1952), that the intent of 

the clairaut to violate was determinative and not the intent of the person 

to whom sold. 

In criminal law a person is geuerally presumed to have intended the 

normal and reasanable consequences of hla 	C-euc 7,  - cited States 

16C r.241 740 (5th Cir. 1947); a is'caolLz_lailL,12, 220 r.2d 540 (5th %.+4.4. 

1955), reversed on other grounds. This iz tho only crIrlinal intent required 

to be proved in offeaaes not requiring wilfulneac or acme specific intent. 

In Bride.eforth v. United States, 233 P.23 451 (6th Cir. 1956), or4m4pal 

prosecution was brought under 20 U.S.C. 7202 providing a fine of from $1,000 

to $5,000 for any person doing  any act which makcc him liable for special tax 

to engage in accepting  wagers without having paid such tan. The Appellate 

Court seated that in a crimiaal prevecution under this statute neither intent  

to avado nor w3.lfulnes9 is 1-ee.aired as nrenf of ruilt. 

In United Starer 7. 74;_. 209 7. Sup?. 592 (D. Dal. 1962), affirmed 

   

339 F,2d 204 (3rd Cir. 1964), prosecution uns under 26 U.S.C. 7203,  ElFa1.Ch 

proscriLes wilful failure to pny tan, make a r:Iturc, keep records, etc. 

The Court stated tilt the tcra "vilful" :Leans that the -ffanse nuat be delib-

e::ztely cad 14:7=1-Inc7.y calcali:ted find alcu ,xi.t11. a bed :121.:ive el: evil intent. 

Autaorit:,  cited is 7,:n5..ted Statcla v 

 

259 P.Zd i (3rti Cir. 195C). 

 

Particular attcatian Lc lavited .c the ;lac:. :11,at Section 905(x) of 

Title 13, United States Code 	 .(-'orfeituze of firearm involved in 

any violat'ion of thc f,1s2cral rf2.-G,=la Aci::  is not a pc:t o serer other clause 

, 



or provision providing puniehoent to persons or defining a crime. It is 

also to be noted thatoneither this forfeiture section no the penalty oectioa, 

U.S.C. 905(a), uses the uord "wilful" or any other language indicative of 

specific crininal intent. 

Lee Parvey Oswald voluntatily used the fictitious nave of A. Uidell 

or A. 3. Hidell is ordering the respondent firearms. It cuet be presumed 

that he intended the 'Lateral and reasoneble coneequeaces of this act, that 

is, that the firearms dealers mold- show the names A. Hidell and A. 3, Uidell 

on their sales records, invoices, shipping records, etc. This intent will 

support the forfeituxe in this case, and it Is not necessary, in the absence 

of a wilfulness requirement, that the government also show that Lee Harvey 

Oswald used the fictitious names for some evil purpose. We believe that the 

evil purpose did enist. That is that Lee Harvey °avoid gave the fictitious 

names in as effort to preclude the tracing of these oeapcns to him because 

he at that Were harbored thoughts of using the vespons in homicides. We 

believe that this evil native is sheen by the oubsequent uses of these 

oeapons in killing and in injuring human beings. ::roof of this evil motive, 

houever, is not required of the ;over tent. 

It might be argued that Lee Harvey Oevald did not know of the require-

ment on firearms dealers to keep records. Proof of this knowledge is also not 

a part of our case. In United 	148 P. Supp. 202 (N. D. Ohio 1957), 

the defendant testified that be aid not hnov that the possession of a sawed-off 

shotgun was a violation of the law. The Court stated that under Sections 5341 

and 5351 of Title 26, U.S.C., scienter was not a necessary elecient of the 

offense. 

In this forfeiture sate, scienter is not a necessary element of the 

offense. As recent as November 26, 1965, the Court of Appeals for tae Fifth 

Circuit, in United States v. Fisher, No. 22056 (net yet in advance sheets of 

Fedetel Reporter), stated that ia this forfeiture action against an automebile 

used in transporting a cootocbnnd firearm, stetotas defiaic, the oeapons 

ccvercd 1;,7 the Nntionni Fioctoms Act sheuld bo ccustroed os any other revenue 

stat.ute, that is, to ascertain ohat as the intent and purpoce of Conaress. 

The 17.7eders1 Firearot Act is a Statute en*Cf:ecl to regulate iota:1*state crx=e=ce 

in .arearms and somo=itioo. Suck a etatue should be given coaStruction to 

e 4 , 



accomplish this purpoae. Construction should not be given uhich meld 

Bose burdens on the government which Caere not clearly intended. Proof 

of scientor and uilfulness is not imposed by the Congress and should not be 

imposed by the Court because of the quesiecrimiaal nature of the proceedings. 

Conclusion 

The parties have stipulated to facts utich :All support en order 

of forfeiture. We have shown that Public Lau 39-318 does not affect this 

forfeiture actioa and that a forfeiture in this case would not be unconsti-

tutional. 110 have also shown that this action is not affected by the recent 

Supreme Court's holding forfeiter actions to be qucsi-criminal because 

this classification is net scu, has been the holding of the Supreme Court 

since the year 1386, and has not caused the Courts to impose more stringent 

requirements as to measure of proof or as to intent. 

Public Lau 39-318 applies to many iteme of property and does not 

become useless because not applied to these firearms. Any declaration of 

forfeiture is this case will relate back to the time of iavolvecent in the 

violatioc; therefore, it is the governmeut'e position that such firearms 

became forfeited prior to the passage of Public Lau 89-318. 

A declaration of forfeiture does not terminate all rights of the 

claimant since he may still petition the Attorney General for remission of 

the forfeiture. lacrid,De sBank v. United States 279 F.2d 

673 (5th Cir. 1960). This Court, however, does not have jurisdiction to 

grant the equitable relief of remission or mitigation of forfeiture. 

barieteetutCamaiv.nzgit_edStatee, 220 F.2d 385 (5th Cir. 1955); 

United States v. Cne 1962 Ford Thunderbird, 232 F. Supp. 1019 (.D. Ill. 1964). 

again respectfully urge the co=t to eeclare the respondent 

firearms forfeited to the United States. 

Respeatfully sebeitted, 

MELITIU 	DT..,.. 

United States Attorney 

By: B. U. TL.-. Bins, jr. 
Assiotant United States Attorney} 

Of Counsel 
James F. Goulding 
Assistent Regional Cox:eel, z.a.s. 

This is to certife that a copy of this brief has Leon served on the 
claimaa John: J. King by mailing 	copy tLeeeoe to his ettornoy of record. 

	.....••■■•■■■■■1001.•■•■■• • 

D. n. Timmiee, 

,..srat.sN 
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IN TnE DISTRICT CT T or 7,m,  UN.a.....0 STATES 

FOR TNE NORTRERN DISTRICT 3P TEXAS 

DALLAS DIVISION 

UNiXtD STATES OF AMERICA, 	 ) 
) 

Libelant, 
) 

v. 	 ) 
) 

ONE 6.5 mm. MANNLICNER-CAROANO 	) 
MILITARY RIME, TIDDEL 91-3S, 	 ) 
SERIAL NO. C2766, 14/711 AP.nTTENANCES, 	) 
AND ONE .33 SPECIAL SW VICTORY EnDEL 	) 
REVOLVER, SERIAL NO. V510210, Nrcal 	) 
APPURTENANCES, 	 ) 

. 	) 
Respondents. 	 ) 

•••■■•••■•■•■••.a•o wl,...........*Na■■■•*seb.. .../IP matai 

CIVIL NO. 3-1171 

GOVERIISEFT.'S ADDITICNALRE,-T2S7ED =CLI-JO:TM 07 

Pursuant to the Pretrial Order entered in this cause on January 27, 

1966, the Libelant now requests the court to mai:a the following additional 

conclusions of law: 

12. Statute providing forfeiture of firearm or ammunition involved 

in any violation of the IDZOVi3i0112 of The 2edora1 Firecrois Act cx any 

rules or regulations pronulgated thern=rier a not unconstitutional, as 

applied in this case, as being contra:,:y to require:tents of the ?ifth 

Amendment to the Constitution reIntin g to duc process of Iaw and tang 

of private property without just compensation. 

13. Although these forfeiture proceedinza are quazi-criminal in 

nature, the Libelant is not put tu any areacr burden of establishing evil 

intent or motive and the voluntary doing p2 the act brining about the 

forfeiture, or causing it to be done, is sqificient intent since a person 

is presumed to intend the natural and 2...ex:aonabl.:4 con 	ca c2 

Respectfully rtzitcd 

D7C:S 
Lci Stct,lsor 

.,- 

32 1.oun3ei 
Jaman 	Gavadini,2 

zsiGtan: R2rf.iana 
Int::r=nal Revenue Srvi 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE UNITED STATES 

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

DALLAS DIVISION 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Libelant, 

v. 
* 

ONE 6.5 mm. MANNLICHER-CARCANO * 	CIVIL NO. 3-1171 
MILITARY RIFLE, MODEL 91-38, 
SERIAL NO. C2766, WITH APPUR- 	* 
TENANCES, AND ONE .38 SPECIAL 	* 
S&W VICTORY MODEL REVOLVER, 
SERIAL NO. V510210, WITH AP-
PURTENANCES, 

Respondents. * 
* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

SUPPLEMENTAL AND REPLY BRIEF OF CLAIMANT 

In this brief Claimant does not restate all of his 

original arguments but supplements only some of them and 

replies to the Government's arguments. 

The organization of Claimant's briefs into separate 

sections seems necessary in view of the number of legal 

points involved, but we do not believe that it should pre-

vent all of the legal questions from being considered in 



the light of what this case really is. The nature of this 

case is self-evident. The Congress has passed a statute 

providing that these weapons may be obtained by paying just 

compensation. The Congressional action and the Attorney 

General's action show clearly that the desire to acquire 

the weapons is completely unrelated to the Federal Firearms 

Act or any policy behind it. This is simply an attempt to 

avoid payment for the historical objects sought. Admittedly, 

this statement is not legal argument, but Claimant submits 

that it is helpful to retain some realism in considering the 

detailed legal questions presented by the parties. 

I. 	THE LIBEL IN THIS ACTION DOES NOT ALLEGE ANY 
INTENT TO DECEIVE OR WILFULLNESS ON THE PART 
OF LEE HARVEY OSWALD. SUCH INTENT WOULD BE 
NECESSARY TO THE GOVERNMENT'S CASE IN ALL 
EVENTS. 

If we assume that a violation by a criminal act were 

shown and that the forfeiture provision of 15 U. S. C. 

905(b) were applicable to a record-keeping violation, and 

if we even further assume that this action punishing Claimant 

King may be brought without showing any violation or intent 

-2- 



on his part, the Government's case for forfeiture of the 

weapons is still deficient in that it has not even alleged 

that Lee Harvey Oswald used the name "Hidell" with any in-

tent to deceive or mislead. 

We are dealing with a situation where the statute does 

not by any express provision purport to regulate the name 

which a purchaser should use in ordering a rifle. The Gov-

ernment seeks to construct such a provision by drawing upon 

a claimed purpose of weapon-tracing behind the statute. It 

is undoubtedly true that the use of a name other than that 

customarily used by a person could be made willfully with 

an intent to conceal the identity of the recipient of the 

weapon. That is the type of situation presented in the 

numerous cases cited in the Government's original brief for 

the proposition that the use of a fictitious or assumed name 

for this purpose is prohibited. In fact, most of those cases 

involved statutes containing an express requirement that the 

prosecution establish willfulness or intent to mislead. For 

example, United States v. Warszower, 113 F. 2d 100 (2d Cir. 

1940) involved prosecution for violation of a statute which 

provided "whoever shall willfully and knowingly use * * * 

-3- 



any passport, the issue of.w:hich was secured in any way by 

reason of any false statement , . . ." 113 F. 2d 100, at 

101. Dear Wing Jung.  v. United States, 312 F. 2d 73 (9th Cir. 

1962) involved prosecution for making false statements in 

matters before the Immigration and Naturalization Service 

in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1001, which includes in its 

provisions that such false statements must be made "know-

ingly and willfully." It seems probable that the distinc-

tion between a fictitious name and an assumed name for the 

purpose of this action is more reasonably treated as an 

issue as to whether the name was used with a fraudulent 

intent. 

Even if the numerous other difficulties in the 

Government's case could be overcome, the cases cited by 

it of use of a second name with intent to defraud or con-

ceal are wholly inapplicable here, where the libel charges 

no intent to conceal the identity of the recipient, no 

willfullness or any other similar element necessary to 

show that the name "Hidell" was not used merely through 

capriciousness, eccentricity, love of mystery, madness, or 

whatever. 

-4- 



Even if we can somehow conceive of this action for 

punishment as being dependent, not upon the acts or inten-

tions of the parties who would in fact be punished, but 

upon the acts and intentions of one long dead, no intention 

or willfullness has even been alleged against the dead man. 

Such intention would be necessary to create a crime not de-

fined in the statute by drawing upon its purposes to say 

that anyone who misleads the licensed dealer with an intent 

to defeat those purposes shall be guilty of a crime. That 

we are dealing with punishment by a quasi-criminal action 

is established by One Plymouth Sedan v. Pennsylvania, 380 

U. S. 693, 14 L. ed. 2d 170, 85 S. Ct. 1246 (1965). 

II. 	SECTION 903(d) OF THE FEDERAL FIREARMS ACT 
IMPOSES DUTIES ONLY ON DEALERS AND IMPOSES 
NONE UPON PURCHASERS. 

The Government's brief recognizes that § 903(d) of the 

Federal Firearms Act is phrased entirely in terms of duties 

imposed upon dealers and contains no language similar to 

the Internal Revenue Code provision prohibiting procuring 

of a false entry (26 U. S. C. § 7206) and providing that 

"property to which such false or fraudulent instrument re- 

lates shall be forfeited" (26 U. S. C. § 7303(8)). 	The 
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Government, however, attempts to bridge this gap in its 

argument with the provisions of § 2 of Title 18 U.S.C., 

which provides: 

"(a) Whoever commits an offense against the United 
States or aids, abets, counsels, commands, induces 
or procures its commission, is punishable as a 
principal. 

"(b) Whoever willfully causes an act to be done 
which if directly performed by him or another would 
be an offense against the United States, is punish-
able as a principal." 

Here again, the Government is making an entirely novel con-

tention. Section 2 of Title 18 deals with meting out pun-

ishment and has never been applied in forfeiture actions 

which were not regarded as actions for punishment when § 2 

of Title 18 was enacted in 1948. The Government has cited 

numerous cases as standing for the principles that one who 

procures another to commit an offense is guilty as a prin-

cipal, that an actor who commits the offense can be an in-

nocent agent whose conviction is not a prerequisite to 

conviction of the one who causes the offense to be committed, 

and that the defendant need not be within the ambit of the 

statute, it being sufficient for conviction if the one who 

is caused to commit the violation is within the statute. 
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A reading of these cases reveals that all are criminal 

prosecutions brought to punish a party guilty of an of-

fense and are not remotely concerned with any forfeiture 

actions. 

By its express terms, § 2 of Title 18 applies only 

to such actions for punishment, both of the clauses of 

that section providing that the person who causes the act 

is "punishable as a principal." Now, the Government con-

tends that this is not an action to punish. If this be 

so, the statute upon which it relies to bridge an obvious 

gap in its case is wholly inapplicable. 

If the Government should concede that this is an action 

to punish, then it wholly fails by reason of the absence of 

any charge whatsoever showing that Claimant King is "punish-

able," 

This whole attempt to use § 2 of Title 18 is but another 

part of a fantastic effort to concoct out of unrelated, in-

applicable statutory fragments a law that Congress has never 

written, i.e., a law providing that all guns ordered by pur-

chasers under an assumed or fictitious name are forfeited 

to the United States, 

-7- 



III. EVEN ASSUMING THAT THERE WAS A VIOLATION OF 
THE FEDERAL FIREARMS ACT ENTITLING THE UNITED 
STATES TO IMPOSE FINE OR IMPRISONMENT ON LEE 
HARVEY OSWALD, THE FORFEITURE PROVISIONS OF 
15 U.S.C. § 905(b) DO NOT APPLY TO RECORD 
KEEPING VIOLATIONS. 

The violation alleged to have occurred in this action 

is the violation of a record keeping requirement imposed 

only upon licensed dealers, as that term is defined in the 

Act. The Government's initial brief has recognized that the 

United States would have a twofold burden in this action 

even if Lee Harvey Oswald were the claimant: it must allege 

and prove both [i] a violation of the Federal Firearms Act, 

and [ii] that the forfeiture provisions of the Act apply to 

weapons as to which an allegedly improper entry appears in 

the records of the licensed dealer. 

For the purposes of this section of Claimant's reply 

brief, we may assume, arguendo, that a violation of the 

Federal Firearms Act has been shown and proceed to consider 

only the question as to whether the statute provides for 

forfeiture of the weapons for this particular record keeping 

violation. Both the Government and the Claimant recognize 

that there are no cases dealing with this question. We are, 

-8- 



accordingly, dealing with a matter of initial statutory 

construction. 

Claimant has fully developed in its original brief the 

point that neither the sale, shipment, nor receipt of the 

firearms here involved was a violation. It thus follows that 

under the literal language of § 905(b), the firearms were not 

"involved in" the violation of the statutory provision requir-

ing licensed dealers to keep records. 

In this case of initial impression, it is appropriate to 

consider the general application of the construction urged by 

the Government, and whether such general application would or 

would not comport with the result Congress may reasonably be 

presumed to have intended in enacting the statutory amendment 

which subsequently became § 905(b). We must recognize that 

in the ordinary course of events 99% of the violations of the 

record keeping requirement would be the fault of the licensed 

dealer. For example, the dealer might erroneously enter faulty 

descriptions of the weapons in his records; he might destroy 

his records before the required ten-year period; or the dealer 

might fail to make his entries "not later than the close of 

business on the day next succeeding the day on which the 
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transaction occurs." 26 C.F.R. § 177.51. The violations 

would be caused by the dealers, and would always involve 

only their records. Yet, the application of the forfeiture 

provision as here attempted would levy the penalty, fine 

or deterrent, not upon the dealer who caused the violation, 

but upon innocent purchasers all over the country. Cer-

tainly, the courts should not stretch the construction of 

a statute beyond what its express language will reasonably 

support upon the basis of a presumed intent by Congress to 

deprive innocent purchasers of weapons by reason of the 

fault of licensed dealers. 

The words "involved in," as used in the forfeiture 

provisions of 15 U.S.C. § 905(b), literally apply only 

where the shipment, transportation, purchase, or receipt 

of the weapons, as prohibited by § 902, constitutes a vi-

olation of the Act. The Government's answering construc-

tion argument to this contention is essentially the 

proposition that: 

If the weapons had not been sold, there could 
have been no false record entry. 

This type of reasoning is lacking in basic logic, even aside 

from the point that such argument presumes a very strange 
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intent on the part of the Congress of the United States. 

We are not dealing with a question of remote causation, but 

with whether guns are "involved in" record keeping. If a 

"moonshiner" does not commute to his illicit still, he ob-

viously cannot produce the illicit "moonshine," but that does 

not permit forfeiture of his commuting automobile as being 

used in the illegal operation. United States v. Lane Motor  

Company, 199 F. 2d 495 (10th Cir. 1952), affirmed 344 U. S. 

630, 97 L. ed. 622, 73 Sup. Ct. 459. 

The Claimant's construction of § 905(b) finds additional 

support in the cases cited in the Government's original brief. 

Lewis v. United States, 170 F. 2d 43 (9th Cir. 1948), 

cited at page 9 of the Government's original brief, dealt with 

the statute which specifically prohibited the procuring of a 

false entry, and, most important, provided: 

"(2) Forfeiture. The property to which such false 
or fraudulent instrument relates shall be forfeited." 

This provision of 26 U.S.C.§ 3793(a) of the 1939 Internal 

Revenue Code, now embodied in 26 U.S.C. 7303(8), applies to 

violations of the Internal Revenue laws, not to the Federal 

Firearms Act. It was originally enacted in 1868 (15 Stat. 

165), over eighty years prior to the enactment of § 905(b) 



in 1950. It shows how the Congress would have written 

5 905(b) if it had intended to forfeit property to which a 

false entry relates. 

The same provision of present 26 U.S.C. § 7303(8) was 

involved in Thacher's Distilled Spirits, 103 U. S. 679 (1880). 

The statute, as quoted in that decision, then read as follows: 

'"Every person who simulates or falsely or 
fraudulently executes or signs any bond, permit, 
entry or document required by the provisions of 
the internal revenue laws, or by any regulations 
made in pursuance thereof, or who procures the 
same to be falsely or fraudulently executed, or 
who advises, aids in or connives at such execu-
tion thereof, shall be imprisoned for a term not 
less than one year nor more than five years, and 
the property to which such false and fraudulent 
instrument relates shall be forfeited.'" 
[Emphasis added.) 

The legislative history cited in Claimant's original brief 

clearly reflects that Congress had no such broad provision 

in mind. 

Also, the case of One 1941 Buick Sedan v. United States  

158 F. 2d 445 (10th Cir. 1946) and the cases cited in the 

footnote on page 13 of the Government's original brief con-

cern statutes and situations presenting no analogy. The 

general framework of these statutes was developed during 
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Prohibition. See United States v. 3,935 Cases of Distilled  

Spirits, 55 F. Supp. 84 (D.C. Minn. 1944). And the approach 

of these cases clearly carries forward the concept of the 

illegality of the whole business operation where the appro-

priate records are not kept and/or taxes are not paid. In 

other words, the "moonshiner's" operation is treated as an 

illegal business just as that of the bootlegger had been. 

The charge made in the Buick case, supra, was summarized by 

the Court as " 	. . carrying on the business of a retail 

liquor dealer without keeping the books and records re- 

quired . 	. ," 158 F. 2d 445, at 446. The purport of the 

decisions is that any property used in carrying on this il-

legal business is forfeitable. 

In the present case there is clearly no basis for find-

ing that there was an illegal business. Lee Harvey Oswald 

was not in business, and the Government does not contend that 

the firearms dealers were guilty of even technical violations, 

much less of operating illegal businesses. Accordingly, even 

if the broader terms of the statutes involved in these cases 

were applicable to the Federal Firearms Act, they would not 

support the claimed forfeiture. 
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IV. FORFEITURE OF THE WEAPONS WOULD EITHER DEPRIVE 
CLAIMANT OF HIS PROPERTY WITHOUT DUE PROCESS OF 
LAW OR CONSTITUTE A TAKING WITHOUT JUST COMPEN-
SATION IN VIOLATION OF THE FIFTH AMENDMENT TO 
THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION. 

A sovereign may exact fines and other properties as 

punishment. In such an instance, no compensation is due. 

The Government may take property for a valid public purpose 

without proving any fault or criminal conduct entitling it 

to punish, but in that case must give compensation. The 

constitutional difficulty of the Government's position here 

is that the taking cannot be justified as punishment since 

the owner is not even charged with wrongdoing. On the other 

hand, it cannot be upheld as an exercise of eminent domain 

since no compensation is provided. 

Claimant's original brief developed the point that the 

present Supreme Court would not support the fining and pun-

ishment of the innocent upon the basis of the legal fiction 

that no punishment of persons was involved but that only the 

guilt of an inanimate object was involved. The case of One 

Plymouth Sedan v. Pennsylvania, 380 U. S. 693, 14 L. ed. 2d 

170, 85 S. Ct.1246 (1965), cited by the Court upon the pre-

trial conference, shows that the Claimant's forecasting 
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ability in this matter has been better than Claimant's 

legal research. 

In One Plymouth Sedan v. Pennsylvania, supra, the 

Court held that the search and seizure provisions of the 

Fourth Amendment, as applied to the States by the Fourteenth 

Amendment, were applicable to a forfeiture proceeding against 

the automobile. The Court recognized that the Fourth Amend-

ment would not be applicable if the forfeiture were not in 

the nature of a criminal proceeding to punish for an offense. 

As a necessary point in reaching its conclusion, the Court 

held that forfeiture proceedings were in the nature of crim-

inal proceedings, analogous to fines. In other words, the 

Court took a completely realistic view and did not avoid the 

impact of its decision by resorting to the fiction that no 

person was being punished, but instead, only an automobile 

was being tried. As in our case, the Court dealt with prop-

erty which was not contraband in nature. 

In the earlier case of Goldsmith, Jr.--Grant Co. v.  

United States, 254 U. S. 505, 65 L. ed. 377 (1921), the Court, 

not unnaturally, experienced some difficulty in upholding the 

taking of an innocent man's property without compensation by 
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reason of the alleged wrong of another, stating: 

" . . . Its words, taken literally, forfeit property 
illicitly used, though the owner of it did not par-
ticipate in or have knowledge of the illicit use. 
There is strength, therefore, in the contention that, 
if such be the inevitable meaning of the section, it 
seems to violate that justice which should be the 
foundation of the due process of law required by the 
Constitution. . . ." 	[354 U. S. 505, at 510] 

After considerable discussion of the ancient doctrine of 

the guilt of inanimate objects, the Court upheld the taking 

squarely upon the proposition that "the thing is primarily 

considered the offender, . . ." [at p. 511] " 	. . the 

guilt or innocence of its owner being immaterial, . . ."  

[at p. 513]. 

The Plymouth case, prior to its consideration by the 

United States Supreme Court, had been decided by the Penn-

sylvania Supreme Court in line with the Goldsmith decision: 

Commonwealth v. One 1958 Plymouth Sedan, 414 Pa. 540, 201 A. 

2d 427 (1964). The Supreme Court of Pennsylvania there re-

lied upon the same fiction to hold the illegal search and 

seizure immaterial, stating: 

"This proceeding is not a criminal proceeding 
(Commonwealth v. One 1927 Graham Truck, 165 Pa. 
Super. 1, 67 A.2d 655; Commonwealth v. One 1939  
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Cadillac Sedan, supra) but a civil proceeding in rem 
(Commonwealth v. One Five-Passenger Overland Sedan, 
90 Pa. Super. 376) and is directed to the confisca-
tion of the property itself on the theory that the 
property is the offender." [201 A. 2d 427, at 429] 

However, when this case reached the United States 

Supreme Court, the Court clearly renounced this fiction 

which was the sole support of both Goldsmith and the Penn-

sylvania decision in One Plymouth Sedan, stating; 

"Finally, as Mr. Justice Bradley aptly pointed 
out in Boyd, a forfeiture proceeding is quasi-
criminal in character. Its object, like a criminal  
proceeding, is to penalize for the commission of an  
offense against the law. In this case McGonigle, 
the driver and owner of the automobile, was arrested 
and charged with a criminal offense against the Penn-
sylvania liquor laws. The record does not disclose 
what particular offense or offenses he was charged 
with committing. If convicted of any one of the 
possible offenses involved, however, he would be sub-
ject, if a first offender, to a minimum penalty of a 
$100 fine and a maximum penalty of a $500 fine. In 
this forfeiture proceeding he was subject to the loss 
of his automobile, which at the time involved had an 
estimated value of approximately $1,000, a higher 
amount than the maximum fine in the criminal proceed-
ing. It would be anomalous indeed, under these cir-
cumstances, to hold that in the criminal proceeding 
the illegally seized evidence is excludable, while in 
the forfeiture proceeding, requiring the determination 
that the criminal law has been violated, the same 
evidence would be admissible. That the forfeiture is  
clearly a penalty for the criminal offense and can re-
sult in even  greater punishment than the criminal  
prosecution has in fact been recognized by the Penn-
sylvania courts" [Emphasis added] [One Plymouth  
Sedan v. Pennsylvania, 380 U. S. 693, 14 L. ed. 2d 170, 
at 175, 85 S. Ct. 1246] 
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It will be noted that, if the Supreme Court had chosen 

to follow the theory urged by the Government here, there 

could have been no illegal search and seizure as the auto-

mobile would have become the property of the State of Penn-

sylvania before the search when it was first used in the 

illegal transportation. 

When the present forfeiture action is viewed in the 

light of a quasi-criminal action, as required by the Plymouth  

case, it can no longer stand. There can be no possible basis 

for exacting a criminal penalty from a claimant against whom 

no charges have even been made. Punishment of the innocent, 

in any guise, cannot be reconciled with the requirements of 

due process. Robinson v. California, 370 U. S. 660, 8 L. ed. 

2d 758, 82 S. Ct. 1417 (1962). This action, then, stands 

simply as one to take the property of an innocent party with-

out compensation. 

It is difficult to conceive of any legal fiction more 

dangerous to liberty than one which would permit the Execu-

tive Branch, acting ex parte, to decide whom to punish and 

whom not to punish and then effect the punishment without 

the showing of any guilt or complicity in any type of 
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adversary proceeding. Even if the guilt of Oswald were the 

governing question and this were somehow considered an ac-

tion for punishment of Oswald, the punishment of a man 

obviously unable to defend cannot be reconciled with any 

of the numerous requirements of due process. 

This is not in any way analogous to the authority of a 

prosecutor to determine which cases to prosecute and which 

cases to drop. There, the prosecutor must at least prove 

some guilt, fault or negligence in the cases which are brought. 

Here, under the Government's contention, the Treasury may in 

its own chamber, without hearing from the party to be punished, 

decide that a person having in his possession, however, inno-

cently, property once used in violation of the Federal Fire-

arms Act is to be subject to an onerous penalty far exceeding 

most fines. The Treasury Department can look at unproved 

charges, consider the personality or the politics of the per-

son to be punished, or anything else concerning this person, 

then, upon making a decision to exact what may be severe 

punishment, as is the case here, proceed to obtain such pun-

ishment in the courts regardless of the complete innocence of 

the party to be punished. In the light of the Plymouth case, 

it is obvious that this procedure cannot be permitted to 

stand. 

• 
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the acquisition and preservation of these very weapons. 

Reference is here made to Claimant's original brief, which 

sets forth the nature of this legislation and the purpose 

of its enactment. 

Any forfeiture of the weapons would either deprive 

Claimant of his property without compensation or would pun-

ish him without process in violation of the Fifth Amendment 

to the Constitution of the United States. 

Respectfully submitted, 

KILGORE & KILGORE 

/ By 	 •," 

William C. Garrett 

By 
ene R. Lyerly 

e 6g,417/ 

This is to certify that a copy of this brief has been 

served on Libelant by mail-144g a copy thereof to B. H. 

Timmins, Jr., Assistant United States Attorney, Dallas, 

Texas. 

• , 	L 

William C. Garrett 
February 7, 1966 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE UNITED STATES 

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

DALLAS DIVISION 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Libelant, 

v. 	 X 	CIVIL NO. CA-3-1171 

ONE 6.5 mm. MANNLICHER-CARCANO 
MILITARY RIFLE, MODEL 91-38, 
SERIAL NO. C2766, WITH APPURTE- I 
NANCES, AND ONE .38 SPECIAL S&W 
VICTORY MODEL REVOLVER, SERIAL 
NO. V510210, WITH APPURTENANCES, 

Respondents. 

CLAIM OF OWNER  

TO SAID HONORABLE COURT: 

AND NOW appears JOHN J. KING, intervening for himself 

as owner of one 6.5 mm. Mannlicher-Carcano Military Rifle, 

Model 91-38, Serial No. C2766, with appurtenances, and one 

.38 Special S&W Victory Model revolver, Serial No. V510210, 

with appurtenances, before this Honorable Court, and makes 
• 

claim to the said one 6.5 mm. Mannlicher-Carcano Military 

Rifle, Model 91-38, Serial No. C2766, with appurtenances 

and one .38 Special S&W Victory Model revolver, Serial No. 

V510210, with appurtenances, as the same are proceeded 

against-at the instance of the United States of America, 

the Libelant, and the said Claimant, John J. King, avers 

that he was, at the time of the filing of the Libel herein, 

and still is, the true and bona fide sole owner of said 

• 



one 6.5 mm. Mannlicher-Carcano Military Rifle, Model 91-38, 

Serial No. C2766, with appurtenances, and one .38 Special 

S&W Victory Model revolver, Serial No. V510210, with appur-

tenances, and that no other person is the owner thereof; 

• 

WHEREFORE, he prays to defend accordingly 

John J. King 

KILGORE & KILGORE 
William C. Garrett.  
Charles F. Hawkins 

1800 First NatiOnal Bank Building 
Dallas, Texas 75202 

Proctors and Attorneys for Claimant 

Of Counsel: 
HOLMBERG & POULSON 
James S. Holmberg 

1700 Broadway 
Denver, Colorado 80202 

THE STATE OF COLORADO 

COUNTY OFDENVERI 

John J. King, being duly sworn, deposes and says that he 
is the claimant described in and who executed the foregoing 
claim; that he has read said claim and knows the contents 
thereof; that the same is true to his own knowledge, except 
as to the matters therein stated to be alleged upon informa-
tion and belief, and that as to those matters, he believes 
it to be true. 

b 
A ---  

John J. King 

SWORN TO BEFORE ME this 
1.'• day of October, 1965. 

Notary Public 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT CF 1 UNITED STATES 

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

DALLAS DIVISICU 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 	 ) 
) 

Libelant, 	 ) 
) 

v. 	 ) 
) 

ONE 6.5 mm. MANNLICHER-CARCANO 	 ) 
MILITARY RIFLE, MODEL 91-38, 	 ) 
SERIAL NO. C2766, WITH APPURTENANCES, 	) 
AND Oil .38 SPECIAL S&W VICTORY MODEL ) 
REVOLVER, SERIAL NO. V510210, WITH 	) 
APPURTENANCES, 	 ) 

) 
Respondents. 	 ) 
	 ) 

CIVIL NO. 3-1171 

GOVERNMENT'S REQUESTED FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW  

Now comes the United States of America by and through its attorney, 

B. H. Timmins, Jr., Assistant United States Attorney for the Northern District 

'of Texas, and requests the Court to make the following findings of fact and 

conclusions of law. 

I. Findings of Fact 

1. That on November 22, 1963, in Dallas, Texas, officers of the Dallas 

Police Department seized and detained the respondent 6.5 mm. Manlicher-Carcano 

Military Rifle, Model 91-38, serial number 02766, with appurtenances, and the 

respondent .38 Special S&W Victory Model Revolver, Serial No. V510210, with 

appurtenances, which respondents are hereinafter referred to as the "rifle" 

and the "revolver," respectively. (Alleged is libel; admitted in claimant's 

answer.) 

2. That at sometime after November 22, 1963, and prior to the institution 

of this forfeiture action, alcohol and tobacco tax officers of the Internal 

Revenue Service adopted the seizure of the rifle and of the revolver as 

property seized as forfeited to the United States. (Paragraph II, page 5 

of claimant's answer admits government's publication of notice of seizure of 



3. The Internal Revenue Service commenced administrative forfeiture 

proceedings against the rifle and the revolver in accordance with Section 7325, 

Title 26, United States Code, and thereafter, the claimant John J. King filed 

a claim and a bond for costs as required by that statute. (Alleged in libel 

of information; admitted in paragraph II, page 5, of claimant's answer.) 

4. The respondent rifle and revolver were in the possession of agents 

of the Federal Government at the time the libel was filed and were stored 

within the Dallas Division of the Northern District of Texas. (Stipulation 

of Facts #6, #37; allegation in libel; admitted in answer.) 

5. The rifle was purchased on or about March 20, 1963, by Lee Harvey 

Oswald from Klein's Sporting Goods Company, Inc., Chicago, Illinois, a dealer 

in firearms holding a license under the provisions of the Federal Firearms 

Act (15 U.S.C. 901, et seq.) (Stipulation of Fact #9, 10, 11, 21.) 

6. The revolver was purchased at sometime during the period January 27, 

1963 and March 13, 1963, by Los Harvey Oswald from Seaport Traders, Inc., 

Los Angeles, California, a dealer in firearms holding a license under the 

provisions of the Federal Firearms Act (15 U.S.C. 901, et seq.) (Stipulation 

of Fact #12, 13, 14, 24.) 

7. In the purchases of the rifle and of the revolver Lee Harvey Oswald 

used the name of "A. Hidell" and "A. J. Hidell," respectively, and used the 

address of Pest Office Box 2915, Dallas, Texas. (Stipulation of Fact #10, 11, 

18, 12, 19.) 

8. Post Office Box 2915, Dallas, Texas, WA rented by Lee Harvey Oswald 

during the period October 9, 1962 to May 14, 1963, using the name Lee R. Oswald. 

(Stipulation of Fact #15, 16, 17.) 

9. The licensed dealers in firearms who sold the rifle and the revolver 

to Lee Harvey Oswald did not know that the purchaser was Lee Harvey Oswald, 

but knew only the name "A. Hidell" or "A. 3. Hide11" as shown in the purchase 

orders. (Stipulation of Fact #36.) 

10. The licensed dealers in firearms kept records of the receipt and 

disposition of firearms as required by Section 903(d), Title 15, U.S.C., and 

showed the purchaser of the rifle on such records as "A. Hide11," and the 

purchaser of the revolver as "A. J. Hidell." (Stipulation of Fact #22, 23, 25, 

26.) 
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11. The licensed dealers in firearms shipped the rifle and the revolver 

to "Sidon" but . these respondent firearms were actually received by Lee Harvey 

Oswald. (Stipulation of Pact #27.) 

12. The wife of Lee Harvey Oswald first beard of the name "Hidell" after 

May 29, 1963, while the name was being used in connection with pro-Castro 

activity in New Orleans, Louisiana. (Stipulation of Feet #20.) 

13. Lee Harvey Oswald had not used the name "A. Elden" or "A. J. Hidell" 

in referring to the person Le. Harvey Oswald to such an extent as to be also 

known as "Hidell" during January to March 1963, when he purchased and received 

the respondent rifle and revolver. Lee Harvey Oswald was not also known as 

"A. Hidell," or "A. J. Hidell," or "Ridell" when he ordered the respondents 

rifle and revolver from the licensed firearms dealers. The use of the name 

"'Sidon" by Lee Harvey Oswald constituted the use of a fictitious name. 

(Stipulation of Fact #20.) 

14. Lee Harvey Oswald, by ordering the rifle and the revolver in a 

fictitious name, caused the sellers of those firearms to show, on their required 

records of disposition of firearms, a fictitious name as the purchaser rather 

than the true name of such purchaser, and thereby caused a violation of 

provisions of Chapter 18, Title 15, United States Code. 

15. The rifle and the revolver were the subject of a fictitious entry 

in the required records of disposition and were therefore involved in violations 

of the record keeping provisions of the Federal Firearms Act (15 U.S.C. 903(d)). 

16. The rifle and the revolver became forfeited to the United States 

because of their having been involved in violations of provisions of the 

Federal Firearms Act. 

17. Claimant, John J. King, acquired his interest, if any, in the rifle 

and the revolver with knowledge that these firearms were in the possession of 

the United States and subject to claims adverse to him or to the person selling 

such firearms to him. (Stipulation of Fact Nos. 30, 31, and Exhibit 

described in Stipulation No. 30.) 

18. Forfeiture of the rifle and of the revolver took effect immediately 

upon their involvement in the violation of the Federal Firearms Act in March 1963, 
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and the right to the property vested in the United States at that time. 

The firearms became property of the United States and the claimant, John J. 

Kings  acquired no interest therein as a result of his attempted purchase of 

such from Marina Oswald. 
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